
Please ask for  Helen McAleer DDI (01362) 656381 
e-mail: helen.mcaleer@breckland.gov.uk 

 
AGENDA 

 

NOTE: In the case of non-members, this agenda is for information only 

 
 
 

Committee - BUSINESS IMPROVEMENT SUB-
COMMITTEE 

Date & Time - Tuesday, 5th January, 2010 at 09.30am 

Venue - Norfolk Room, The Conference Suite, Elizabeth 
House, Dereham 

 
 

 

Members of the Sub-Committee requiring further information, or with specific 
questions, are asked to raise these with the appropriate officer at least two 

working days before the meeting.  If the information requested is available, this 
will be provided, and reported to the Sub-Committee. 

 
 

Members of the Sub-Committee 
  
Mr W.H.C. Smith (Chairman) 
Mr P.D. Claussen 
 

Lady Fisher 
 

 

 
 
 

PERSONS ATTENDING THE MEETING ARE PERSONS ATTENDING THE MEETING ARE PERSONS ATTENDING THE MEETING ARE PERSONS ATTENDING THE MEETING ARE 

REQUESTED TO TURN OFF MOBILE TELEREQUESTED TO TURN OFF MOBILE TELEREQUESTED TO TURN OFF MOBILE TELEREQUESTED TO TURN OFF MOBILE TELEPHONESPHONESPHONESPHONES    

Member Services  
Elizabeth House, Walpole Loke, 
Dereham Norfolk, NR19 1EE 
 

 

Date: Wednesday, 23 December 2009  
 
 
 

Public Document Pack



Business Improvement Sub-Committee 
05 January 2010 

 

 

 

PART A - ITEMS OPEN TO THE PUBLIC 

 

 Page(s) 
herewith 

1. MINUTES  1 - 5 

 To confirm the Minutes of the meeting held on 1 December 2009.  
 

 

2. APOLOGIES   

 To receive any apologies for absence.    
 

 

3. URGENT BUSINESS   

 To consider any urgent business.   
 

 

4. DECLARATION OF INTERESTS   

 Members are asked at this stage to declare any interests they may have in 
any of the following items on the agenda. The Members’ Code of Conduct 
requires that declarations include the nature of the interest and whether it is a 
personal or prejudicial interest.  
 

 

5. NON-MEMBERS WISHING TO ADDRESS THE MEETING   

 To note the names of any non-members who wish to address the meeting.  
 

 

6. ICT STRATEGY 2009  6 - 26 

 Report of the Director of Governance and Finance.  
 

 

7. PRINT STRATEGY  27 - 39 

 Report of the Director of Governance and Finance.  
 

 

8. CUSTOMER ACCESS STRATEGY  40 - 59 

 Report of the Director of Community Services.  
 

 

9. PROJECTS REVIEW   

 Verbal update on the status of other projects by the Head of ICT.  
 

 

10. SUBMITTED APPLICATION FORMS (STANDING ITEM)   

a) Housing - DigiTV proposal 
 

 

11. NORFOLK HEADS OF ICT / LOCAL AUTHORITY PARTNERING / 
SHARED SERVICES  

 

 Verbal update by the Head of ICT.  
 

 

12. FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE  To Follow 

 Report of the Director of Governance and Finance.  
 

 



Business Improvement Sub-Committee 
01 January 2010 

 
 
 Page(s) 

herewith 

 

13. OPERATIONAL PERFORMANCE/STERIA SERVICE REVIEW  60 - 63 

 Report presented by the Head of ICT.  
 

 

14. EXCLUSION OF PRESS AND PUBLIC   

 To consider passing the following resolution: 
 
“That under Section 100(A) of the Local Government Act 1972 the press and 
public be excluded from the meeting for the following item of business on the 
grounds that it involves the disclosure of exempt information as defined in 
Paragraph 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A to the Act”. 
 

PART B – ITEMS FROM WHICH THE PRESS AND PUBLIC ARE 
EXCLUDED  

 

 

15. COUNCIL TAX - BENEFIT REALISATION   

 Verbal update by the Head of ICT.  
 

 

16. LICENSING SERVICE REVIEW   

 Verbal update on progress to date by the Head of ICT.  
 

 

17. NEXT MEETING   

 To note that the next meeting will be held on Tuesday 16 February 2010 at 
09.30am in the Norfolk Room, Conference Suite, Elizabeth House, Dereham. 
  
 

 

 



 
 
 

 

1 

BRECKLAND COUNCIL 
 

At a Meeting of the 
 

BUSINESS IMPROVEMENT SUB-COMMITTEE 
 

Held on Tuesday, 1 December 2009 at 9.30 am in 
Norfolk Room, The Conference Suite, Elizabeth House, Dereham 

 
PRESENT  
Mr W.H.C. Smith (Chairman) 
Mr P.D. Claussen 
 

Lady Fisher 
 

 
Also Present  
Mr P.J. Duigan 
 

  
 

 
In Attendance  
Margaret Bailey - Senior Accountant Capital and Treasury 
Robert Barlow - Director of Governance and Finance 
Monica Coffey - Customer Services Manager 
Kevin J Taylor - ICT/BIT Manager 
Helen McAleer - Member Services Officer 

 
 Action By 

30/09 MINUTES   

  

 The minutes of the meeting held on 6 October 2009 were agreed as a 
correct record and signed by the Chairman. 
 
The following points were noted: 
 
(a) Steria Service Review (Minute No 16/09(e)) 
 

The introduction of Citrix to Members had highlighted a number of 
new issues not previously experienced.  Roll out to all Members 
would be delayed until these had been overcome.  The benefits of 
using Citrix were reaffirmed as providing greater security, 
flexibility, management and speed. It was expected that Citrix 
would relieve a number of connectivity issues. The additional 
password protection allowed Breckland to meet government 
requirements and enabled the Breckland system to be securely 
accessed remotely from a variety of devices.  This combined with 
the Citrix model had wider benefits regarding further connectivity 
to other Public Sector bodies and was likely to underpin future 
mobile working initiatives. 

 
(b) Customer Access Strategy (Minute No 19/09) 
 

It was confirmed that Breckland would participate in the ‘Tell Us 
Once’ pilot.  A meeting on 6 December would allocate team 
leaders. 
 
An independent consultant had reviewed the telephony provision 
following high volumes of engaged calls and his report was 

 

Agenda Item 1

1



Business Improvement Sub-Committee 
1 December 2009 

 
 

2 

 Action By 

 
expected later in the week.  His initial view was that the number of 
lines was not the issue - it was the way in which they were used 
that was limiting availability.  A report would be presented to the 
next meeting, incorporating the independent consultant’s findings. 
 

(c) BIT / ICT Projects  and Projects Review (Minute Nos 20/09 & 
21/09) 

 
The Chairman asked if red/green project reporting had been 
implemented into the TEN system.  RB had spoken to the Policy 
and Performance Manager and confirmed that all capital 
programmes were on TEN.  IT Projects were included but were 
not broken down individually but this would be incorporated by the 
next meeting. 
 
It was noted that concerns had been raised because projects were 
being completed from an ICT perspective, but could not be closed 
as benefits proposed had not been realised by the service area.  
RB said that this was covered within each Service Team’s Plan 
and the Policy and Performance Manager was making changes to 
ensure that benefits and outcomes could be tracked, with Service 
Heads expected to address any slippage issues via the 
Performance Management model. 

  
31/09 APOLOGIES   

  

 Apologies for absence were received from Adam Colby and Kevin Rump. 
  

 

32/09 URGENT BUSINESS   

  

 At a meeting of the Capita Partnership Group held on 30 November 2009 
an issue concerning the purchase of consultancy days for the Ocella 
system had been raised. 
 
As ownership of the Ocella system remained with the Council, any money 
spent on it would need to provide benefit to the Council.  Responsibility 
for that benefit to Breckland was accepted and it was agreed that funding 
would be found.  (This had not been budgeted for in the ICT budget and 
would need to be sourced from elsewhere).  KT agreed to suggest to the 
Capita Partnership Group that they held three monthly reviews to raise 
future needs and to agree a strategic approach to ICT investment, with 
clear governance arrangements to provide an auditable approval process.  
Outputs from these meetings would be reported to the Sub-Committee. 
 

 

33/09 NON-MEMBERS WISHING TO ADDRESS THE MEETING   

  

 Mr P Duigan. 
  

 

34/09 BIT/ICT PROJECTS REVIEW (INCLUDING INTERNET REFRESH 
UPDATE)  

 

  

 The Head of ICT had tabled a report which was self explanatory and gave 
details of the status of current projects. 
 
Following on from the business discussed at Minute No 32/09 above KT 

 
 
 
 
 

2



Business Improvement Sub-Committee 
1 December 2009 

 
 

3 

 Action By 

 
suggested that if an issue was endorsed by the Capita Partnership Board 
it should come to the Sub-Committee for approval. 
 
Members discussed Mobile working proposals and said that they should 
only be introduced where it was most appropriate and cognisant of 
potential home working opportunities.  It was noted that technology was 
only a small part of any mobile working solution and investment would 
need to be made in organisational change elements.  Mobile working 
solutions needed to be benefit driven as well as delivering reductions in 
carbon emissions, providing space saving and improving flexibility and 
productivity.   RB would discuss the scale of benefits with the Policy and 
Performance Manager. 
 
MB was concerned that the revised IT Strategy draft was on the Exec 
Board agenda but that it was not tied into budget availability.  She said 
there was a lot of unallocated money and a need to assess if adequate 
investment was available.  KT agreed to provide more information 
separate from the Strategy. 
 
A report on shared service opportunities with NCC had been tabled and   
discussion followed on the options available with NCC and other 
authorities.  A report on the potential BT cost elements was expected in 
January/February if available from Norfolk County Council.  RB said that a 
business case should be prepared by April 2010. 
 
The Chairman suggested that a ‘mix and match’ approach to partnering 
might be the best way forward and asked officers to start evaluating the 
pros and cons of each option. 
  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Robert 
Barlow 
 
 
 
 
Kevin J 
Taylor  

35/09 CUSTOMER ACCESS STRATEGY   

  

 MC reported that the Customer Access Strategy was now with the 
Communications Team.  Once their feedback was received she would be 
disseminating the Strategy to Service Managers. 
  

 

36/09 APPLICATION FORMS (STANDING ITEM)   

  

 KT reported that there were no application forms this month but that two 
would be coming forward soon: Choice Based Lettings and Digi-TV. 
 
The Chairman reiterated that he felt that a standardised PID form should 
be used throughout the Council. 
 
RB agreed to look into this and a Member asked him to include a post 
project appraisal section in his review of the forms. 
  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Robert 
Barlow  

37/09 NORFOLK HEADS OF ICT / LOCAL AUTHORITY PARTNERING   

  

 This item had been discussed at Minute No 34/09 above. 
 
It was noted that the next meeting of the Norfolk Heads of ICT was being 
held later on in the day. 
  

 

3



Business Improvement Sub-Committee 
1 December 2009 

 
 

4 

 Action By 

 
 
38/09 FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE   

  

 A Financial Performance report was tabled by MB.  She explained that 
the budget for 2009/10 (£762,950) contained two unallocated figures: 
£106,164 for the Refresh project and 232,476 for the ICT Strategy.   A 
further £200,000 funding was being requested in the budget report going 
to Council.  MB pointed out that currently the total budget was forecast to 
be spent by 31 March 2010.  If an underspend was expected a report to 
Cabinet would be needed to request carry-over of funding. 
 
KT agreed to meet with MB to work out the figures for the Capital project 
spending. 
 
A Member noted that the funding allocated for the Contact Service Centre 
infrastructure was currently on hold whilst the pilot scheme was reviewed.  
A meeting was scheduled with finance to look at all the information and 
compare the costs at the different locations (Attleborough, Watton and 
Swaffham). 
 
With regard to the Refresh programme, a new ChipPC was being trialled 
as an alternative to desk based PCs and laptops for Members.  These 
would work out at about one third the price and were much quicker to 
start up. 
  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Kevin J 
Taylor  

39/09 OPERATIONAL PERFORMANCE / STERIA SERVICE REVIEW   

  

 KT presented the report which showed stable service with no particular 
problems.  Once Citrix was rolled out to all Members it should 
substantially cut connectivity problems. 
 
A representative from Steria would like to attend the next meeting to 
provide a demonstration of the VMware capability. 
  

 

40/09 EXCLUSION OF PRESS AND PUBLIC   

  

 RESOLVED that under Section 100(A)(4) of the Local Government Act 
1972, the press and the public be excluded from the meeting for the 
following items of business on the grounds that they involved the likely 
disclosure of exempt information as defined in Paragraph 3 of Part 1 of 
Schedule 12A to the Act. 
  

 

41/09 COUNCIL TAX - BENEFIT REALISATION STATUS   

  

 RB reported that this project was delivering benefits with over 90% of 
calls being dealt with at the first point of contact.  This had actually 
resulted in a reduction in the volume of calls to the back office Revenues 
and Benefits Team, although proof of this was being sought by colleagues 
in Forest Heath. 
 
Officers were still working to provide the evidence to get agreement from 
Forest Heath to free up one post. 
  

 

4



Business Improvement Sub-Committee 
1 December 2009 

 
 

5 

 Action By 

 
 
42/09 LICENSING SERVICE REVIEW AND PROGRESS TO DATE   

  

 An update on this project had been provided in the tabled report from KT.  
Good progress was being made and the project was expected to 
complete in April 2010. 
 
A meeting had been held with the suppliers to define the hardware 
requirements and costs. 
  

 

43/09 NEXT MEETING   

  

 It was noted that the next meeting would be on Tuesday 5 January 2010, 
at 09.30am in the Norfolk Room, Conference Suite, Elizabeth House, 
Dereham. 
  

 

 
The meeting closed at 10.55 am 

 
CHAIRMAN 

5



 

 
     
 
 

        Breckland Council  
 

 

        

 

 

 

 
Information & Communications  

Technology Strategy 
 

Version: 0.1A 

November 2009 
 

     

Agenda Item 6

6



 
 

Breckland ICT Strategy v0.1                                                                       Page 2 of 21               Created on 1st December 2009 
  
  
  

 

Document control 

 

Version history 

Version Date Comments 

1(Draft)_0.1 1 December 2009 First Draft 

   

   

   

 

 

 

 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 

 
 

 
 

 

 
Publishers Reference: 

 

Author Kevin Taylor 

Review Date  

Effective date TBD 

Document Version 0.1 

Document Location  L:\Keep\ICT\ICT Strategy 

 

 

7



 
 

Breckland ICT Strategy v0.1                                                                       Page 3 of 21               Created on 1st December 2009 
  
  
  

 

 Contents 

1. Executive Summary 4 

2. Introduction 5 

3. Purpose of the Strategy 6 

4. Council Vision and Business direction 7 

4.1 Current Position 8 

4.2 ICT Service/Support 8 

4.3 IT Hardware and infrastructure 8 

4.4 Software & applications 9 

4.5 IT refresh 9 

4.6 Customer Access Strategy 10 

4.7 Telephony Services 10 

4.8 Governance & Benefits prerequisites 10 

5. Green IT Plan 13 

6. Mobile Working 14 

7. Implementation and Action Plan 15 

8. List of Achievements 2008/9 19 

9. Appendix A – Example of Governance/Project Prioritisation 20 

10.  Appendix B – Project Interrelationships 21 

8



 
 

Breckland ICT Strategy v0.1                                                                       Page 4 of 21               Created on 1st December 2009 
  
  
  

 

1. Executive Summary 

The purpose of the ICT Strategy is to clearly map out the service targets for the next five years and 
show how these would be achieved. 

It sets out to define the ICT policies, projects and plans needed to support Breckland’s aspirations, 
priorities and objectives. It draws upon the corporate Business Plan, and Service Team Plans, and 

builds upon the ICT foundations that have already been established. This strategy seeks to underpin 

Council and regional objectives by aligning ICT and Business Improvement with corporate priorities, 
and ICT will work to support efficient and effective service delivery and provide innovative 

opportunities to add value and deliver best value. 

To ensure the service remains business driven, the ICT Team works closely with Service Managers to 

develop and deliver their business objectives through use and application of ICT and Business 

Improvement techniques. To this end, a revised project governance model has been introduced to 
ensure projects are aligned to the business and to provide a robust scoring system to determine 

relative priorities. A flowchart of the revised process is included under the Governance section. ICT 
and Business Improvement provides an internal consultancy service to seek to deliver innovative and 

entrepreneurial service provision within Breckland, and has also delivered external consultancy to 
other Local Authorities on request. 

In brief summary, Breckland’s Business Plan describes the ‘what’ in terms of futures, and the ICT 

Strategy defines the ‘how’. 

It is also recognised that ICT is only a part of any business transformation activity, and that Business 

Process Review aligned with ICT offers significant organizational change benefits. It is for this reason 
that Breckland has adopted a more business focused approach for business development, and has 

replaced its ICT Steering Group with a more business aligned and elevated Business Improvement 

Sub Committee, reporting via the Exec Board.  

This is a very positive for the business as this is a key decision making forum that represents the 
Council’s interests as a whole, allowing high level management of budget and benefit realisation 
programmes and projects. 

 

 

 

 

9



 
 

Breckland ICT Strategy v0.1                                                                       Page 5 of 21               Created on 1st December 2009 
  
  
  

 

2. Introduction 

From Society of IT Managers (SOCITM): 

 

           “Between 2007 and 2011 the priority for technology investment and business change must 
be transforming delivery into public services centred round citizens and businesses, and 
transforming support into a shared services framework. During this period it will also be 
important to realise the financial and service benefits of current and planned investments. 

 
          The goal should be to have made the key changes, to have embedded the new cultures, and to 

have made the process irreversible, by 2011.” 

This document sets out the medium-long term corporate ICT strategy for Breckland Council. The ICT 

strategy brings together in one place a wide range of existing technical and business strategies and 
reference the Council’s Vision of Breckland; other key policies and corporate practices.  

This document should be read in conjunction with the Council’s Business Plan [2004-2010] and the 
Service Annual Delivery Plans, and also raises the profile of the Customer Access Strategy, a key 

document in delivering to the aims of the above. 

 

 

 

Note: At time of writing, Breckland has been in discussions with other District and County councils 

around sharing of services, infrastructure and skills recognizing the financial and service challenges 
facing us, and the need to continue to deliver value for money for our residents. The Strategy 

therefore is not overly prescriptive, and seeks to deliver a model and an infrastructure that meets 

industry standards and continues to provide Breckland with flexibility of service provider, which also 
supports interconnection to other private and public sector bodies as and when required. 

10



 
 

Breckland ICT Strategy v0.1                                                                       Page 6 of 21               Created on 1st December 2009 
  
  
  

 

3. Purpose of the Strategy 

To put in place over the next five years the people, the resources, the culture and processes 
necessary to ensure: 

• Staff and Councillors have the information needed to support the corporate objectives of the 

Council 

• To ensure that opportunities to share knowledge, infrastructure, resources and common 

approaches are maximised 

• To ensure that the ICT strategy continues to contribute to the delivery of continuous 

improvement  

• Evaluating and promoting the use of new technology where it can deliver benefits to services 

 

However, it is recognised that the deployment of such technology on its own is unlikely to deliver all 
of the potential improvements in quality and productivity referred to above, as factors such as 

effective training, delivery of organisational change, and clear establishment of key criteria for 
measuring and realising benefits - all contribute to the success of a project.  

 

11



 
 

Breckland ICT Strategy v0.1                                                                       Page 7 of 21               Created on 1st December 2009 
  
  
  

 

4. Council Vision and Business direction 

The Council’s ICT strategy needs to support the Council’s vision and business direction. 

The Council seeks to use the most modern and affordable technology available to help achieve its 

business aims.  

It also wishes to be regarded in Local Government as an organisation that is at the forefront of IT 

with clearly demonstrable business benefits.  

The Council’s overall vision statement is: “A Better Place, a brighter future’, underpinned by the 5 
key themes as follows, (with reference made to relevant links to the  ICT Strategy): 

• CA 01  Building Safer and Stronger communities; 

          The ICT Strategy supports and underpins cross authority Service Team Plans, and has already 
provided ICT and Business Support to key programmes that support CA01 – such as CCTV 

project initiation, support and advice to the Choice Based Lettings service and support to the 

Migration Impact programme (the mobile multi service bus – with satellite comms) as well as 
Licensing and Environmental services. However ICT already delivers support services to the 

Communities teams as part of the standard service provision offered to the Council. 

• CA 02  A Clean and green environment;  

ICT and BIT have a number of initiatives already underway to seek to ensure Breckland meet 

and exceeds its Green policy targets. These include adoption of VM Ware technologies to 
reduce heat, light, space and power requirements, an evaluation of low power thin client 

devices, and consideration of mobile working technologies to seek to reduce staff travel. 

Progress of these initiatives is being tracked through a Breckland Green Agenda Development 
Panel. 

• CA 03  Building prosperous communities;  

The ICT/BIT team already work closely with all Breckland business units, including Economic 
Development teams and are championing the improvement in broadband services across 

Breckland, with our colleagues at District and County level. 

• CA 04 ‘Your Council, your services’ - tailored services for local needs;  

The Customer Access Strategy is a key document that seeks to deliver citizen centric services to 
Breckland residents and Service Users, there is therefore strong Customer Services 

representation at the Business Improvement Sub Committee to ensure all projects and 
programmes are assessed to deliver to local needs. The Council are also considering alternative 

channels to ease access to info, such as SMS/DigiTV and potentially video conferencing to 
make the experience for the resident fast, effective, efficient and comfortable! 

• CA 05 An entrepreneurial council; 

Breckland has a track record of innovation, process and ‘purpose’ challenge, using both LEAN 

and Systems Thinking approaches – with the aim of delivering what the customers need rather 
than replicating services provided previously. This ‘challenge model’ alongside feasibility and 

adoption of better technologies when suitable means we can flex elements of our service to 
expected needs relatively swiftly. Breckland recognises however that there is also plenty of best 

practice already being applied, and will not seek to ‘reinvent the wheel’ should a working 

solution be available.ICT Environment 

12



 
 

Breckland ICT Strategy v0.1                                                                       Page 8 of 21               Created on 1st December 2009 
  
  
  

 

4.1 Current Position 

Breckland Council ICT is currently delivered from a mixture of legacy and modern technologies – as 

many systems have been purchased over time for a range of different purposes. This is a normal 
approach, although integration is limited and could be improved where financially and operationally 

justified  

The skill sets to support such systems is therefore necessarily fragmented too – with certain skills held 
in certain geographic locations, with occasional need to procure specialist skills to support specialist 

activities. 

As regards application development, Breckland has prudently moved away from bespoke or local 

developments, and now tends to use ‘best of breed’ products. This approach has held us in good 

stead as regards supportability and risk, and also minimizes our long term support costs. 

Network security has also received considerable focus of late requiring significant investment over the 

past 12 months to achieve Government Connect CoCo compliance. However this is an ongoing 
process and further investment will be needed over the coming years to ensure we remain compliant.  

It is also worth noting that Breckland have operated its ICT within an environment of partnership 
services/suppliers, including Parkwood, Serco, and more recently CAPITA for its Building Control 

services. Breckland expect to develop these partnerships to ensure maximum value is obtained, and 

where best practice exists with partners, Breckland will seek to make use of this where viable. 

4.2 ICT Service/Support 

Breckland has also for the past 8 years used Steria Services as an IT Service organization to deliver a 

wide range of IT services (LAN/WAN Apps/systems/desktop support), however as the contract was 
extended in 2008, EU and procurement regulations preclude further extension. However the timing of 

the contract means that we have ample opportunity to test the market and review a number of 
potential options for future Service Delivery. 

4.3 IT Hardware and infrastructure 

The Council has built its services on traditional supportable platforms, Windows/Unix/Sun, and Dell 
PCs laptops, using fixed point to point connections between sites, and reliant on BT as supplier for 
voice line telephony, and Vodafone for mobile phones/mobile devices. This has been a safe and 

steady path, however technology and costs have changed, providing Breckland now with a number of 
new opportunities for cost and service changes.  

Breckland have consulted with a number of external parties and as a result, the proposed network 
topology (as follows) is recommended. 

This approach seeks to make use of MPLS technologies to deliver secure ‘cloud’ based computing, 

providing us with considerably more flexibility as regards connectivity and security, providing greater 
flexibility of access location and service provision. 

13



 
 

Breckland ICT Strategy v0.1                                                                       Page 9 of 21               Created on 1st December 2009 
  
  
  

 

 

4.4 Software & applications 

The strategy focuses on maximising use of current technology and systems deployed to ensure that full value is 
obtained from investments, To ensure systems and application performance is optimised, a programme of annual 
health checks is also recommended for key systems. 

4.5 IT refresh 

There has been prudent accrual of budget to support a refresh programme for PCs/laptops/printers 

and servers, this combined with newer tools and technologies means that we can now replace more 
kit for less cost, increasing Value for Money. 

Key opportunities to be considered are as follows:: 

• thin client devices or Netbooks (at 30% cost of laptops) and rollout of Citrix as a channel to 

Breckland services (similar model to Forest Heath) 

• Further rollout of VMware, reducing the need for physical servers, and increasing resilience 
and failover 

• Network benefits from use of MPLS service 

• Further rollout of Citrix for remote connectivity 

There is a schedule now in place to move us towards our target operating model. 

14



 
 

Breckland ICT Strategy v0.1                                                                       Page 10 of 21               Created on 1st December 2009 
  
  
  

 

4.6 Customer Access Strategy 

This is a key document that describes how we engage with our customers, and recognises the 

importance of the web as a key channel for our customers. This document sits outside the ICT 
Strategy however the Strategy seeks to deliver to the aims of the Customer Access Strategy. 

The soon to be redeveloped website is an important delivery channel that offers the opportunity to 

reduce the cost to service while increasing the availability and accessibility of services. Using the 
website, residents (of all languages and ability) can gain access to services in a manner and at a time 

that suits them. People of the district can come to the site to learn, look for work, pay council tax, 
report stray dogs or abandoned vehicles, and contact their local Member. Importantly, there is a need 

to increase/develop/grow the focus on the website purpose such that the website not only supports 

self-service and transactions online but also provides the infrastructure to support internal customer 
services. The same tools, systems and infrastructure are being used to support our call centre and 

face-to-face contact centres.  

To maximise the potential benefit to citizens, as well as the benefits in terms of cost reductions and 

increased efficiency, the Council will need to give particular attention to the following: 

• Actively promoting and encouraging citizens to use electronic ways (email, website, e-forms) 

to contact the Council; 

• Increasing the volume and variety of online services and transactions we provide through the 

website, in order to encourage self-service; 

• Ensuring that Council staff who deal with the public have electronic access to appropriate 

systems and training; 

• Ensuring that all citizens have access to services regardless of their location or access 

preference; 

• Forming further links with the County Council, other neighbouring local authorities, 
government and non-governmental organisations, to seek to deliver a one stop shoso that the 
citizen does not have to be an “expert” to gain access to the arm of the government that 

supplies the service required. 

4.7 Telephony Services 

Dereham/Thetford sites currently rely on Siemens switches and dedicated ISDN lines to deliver 

telephony services internally and to our residents. However the system was designed and sized a 

number of years ago, therefore a review of fitness for purpose is underway to determine whether this 
needs to be revised to take advantage of greater functionality such as use of MPLS and Voice over 

Internet Protocol (VoIP) – which allows telephony and data services to be managed and shared 
together, allowing software to control access and minimises links required, and provides greater 

opportunities for data integration and enhanced mobile working. 

4.8 Governance & Benefits prerequisites  

Corporate Governance of business improvement and ICT in the Council is undertaken by the Business 

Improvement Sub Committee.  

This Board has been formed as the Business Improvement and ICT projects and services decision-
making and monitoring body. Its role is to ensure that Breckland receives best value from its 

investments, and that projects and programmes are aligned with the Council’s corporate objectives 
and priorities. There is key representation from Customer Services, Finance, and ICT and affected 

15



 
 

Breckland ICT Strategy v0.1                                                                       Page 11 of 21               Created on 1st December 2009 
  
  
  

 

Service Areas, with chairmanship provided by Deputy Leader of the Council.  

For the Council to realise benefits of investments made in ICT systems and hardware the following 

prerequisites are recognised and adopted: 

• Expectations between customer and supplier to be aligned. Clarity over what is to be 

delivered, standards and performance of delivery and penalties/consequences of non-delivery 

to be addressed in advance of any investment. Contracts must be specific and contain the 
Council’s terms and conditions, not the supplier’s.  

• All purchases should consider the functionality, usability, reliability, performance, 

supportability and security of systems. 

• A sound and robust infrastructure which provides resilience and performance. It should also 

allow for future capacity and flexible and scalable for future growth. 

• Systems that are as bug/problem free as possible. A more professional approach to the 

testing of systems is essential before introduction into the operational environment. Best 

practice industry standard processes must be used to minimize the risk of system being 
delivered into the production environment with bugs and poor performance times.  

• A structured method in the smooth delivery of new applications and management of existing 

infrastructure to a high standard to ensure any negative impact on members, staff and 
citizens is minimised as much as possible  

• A clear recognition by service managers that IT requires staff across services to potentially 

work in different ways if benefits are to be realised. Implications should be identified and 

addressed before implementations are agreed and work commences. 

• A clear recognition by Managers that the implementation of new IT Systems is to be driven 
by the business and that appropriate resources should be made available to aid delivery of 

projects and to allow benefit realisation. 

• Recognition that IT systems and investments are underlined by legislation and Government 

Initiatives which the council must comply with (e.g, Data Protection, RIPA, FOI, Government 

Connect) 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

16



 
 

Breckland ICT Strategy v0.1                                                                       Page 12 of 21               Created on 1st December 2009 
  
  
  

 

There is an approval/governance process for new projects and programmes for new BI/ICT 

Applications which are reviewed at the Business Impovement Sub Committee Meetings (terms of 

reference reviewed annually.) The following diagrams show the review/acceptance process, and the 
criteria used for scoring new projects (with some key projects included for completeness.) 

 

The next diagram below illustrates the measurement/selection criteria for new projects, showing a 

graphical representation of key projects mapped against criteria, which assists the Business 

Improvement Sub Committee in prioritising programmes and projects. 

 

 

The council also works with a number of strategic partners already, such as Serco, Parkwood leisure 
and Steria, and it is important that Breckland maximises and leverages the experience and skills in 

these organisations to most benefit. BI/ICT will therefore work closely with contracts team to seek to 
ensure it continues to: 

 

• Bring in private sector knowledge and skills to increase the capacity for innovation in service 

delivery; 
• Realise revenue savings through achieving cost reductions in service delivery; 

• Realise increased revenue income through profit sharing from business opportunities generated 

by the partnership: 

Application 
Form 

Rejected 

Accepted 

Further 
info 

required 

Ideas 

BIS
C 

Feasibility 
Study 

Rejected 

Accepted 

Further 
info 

required 

BIS
C 

Initiate 
Project 

Rejected 

Accepted 

Further 
info 

required 

BISC 

Ideas Rejected 

Project Formally Initiated 

Step 1 

Step 2 

Step 3 

BISC
B 

= Business       Improvement 
Sub Committee 

17



 
 

Breckland ICT Strategy v0.1                                                                       Page 13 of 21               Created on 1st December 2009 
  
  
  

 

5. Green IT Plan  

 

Information and communication technology (ICT) is responsible for up to 20 per cent of carbon emissions 

generated by Government offices – around 460,000 tonnes a year. Local Authorities are being targetted to 
reduce its Carbon footprint – and deliver to a new National indicator NI185. 

It is however recognised that this is a ‘council wide’ programme which needs to change the way that people 
work to reduce the amount of materials and power, with the aim of minimising the environmental impact.  

Breckland have a number of Green ICT initiative already underway, as follows: 

 

• Virtualisation of some 45+ servers. In effect this means we have replaced many physical servers 

with a significantly reduced number running several server ‘instances’ on each. This reduces power 

consumption, space required and also reduced need for air conditioning, and increases service 

resilience. 

• Printer usage education – we have purchased software that gives us significant management and 

control over print queues, tracking and controlling volumes, print job sizes, need for colour, 

duplication, and other areas – and will be ensuring double sided printing is adopted as a default. This 

alone is expected to deliver savings in both printer/paper/toner usage. 

• Rationalised printer usage. We are looking to removing wasteful desktop printers and divert 

larger print jobs to more efficient and cost effective we now use only efficient, networked, duplexed 
printers.  

• Citrix Client Devices/use of Netbooks – (already adopted at Forest Heath). Devices use 1 watt of 
power as opposed to 150-200W compared to current PCs/laptops – and costs are much cheaper than 
Laptops and PCs, with start-up time in seconds rather than minutes. Requires additional investment in 

back office systems, however very good long term payback on investment and reductions in support 

costs.  
• Home Working / Mobile Working – Both Capita (using Ocella) and Licensing teams will be trialling 

mobile working solutions in next 6-9 months, having benefits to both office space used, heating and 

lighting, costs of travel and reduced carbon footprint (based on more effective travel planning) We also 
have opportunities to share offices and infrastructure with some of our neighbouring authorities, again 

reducing carbon usage.             
• Electronic Document Image Management – this could be adoption of scanning of paper docs 

(removal of storage/less space to heat etc)  
• Environmental management of offices - Many office lights still being left on, as well as air 

conditioning and Audio Visual kit left on in empty rooms. A simple note/message to staff/name and 

shame (!) exercise may help alleviate this.  
• Reusing as much computer equipment as possible. Most of the energy used in the lifetime of a 

PC is consumed during manufacture. Extending its use or re-using it elsewhere will save both energy 

and money.  

 

18



 
 

Breckland ICT Strategy v0.1                                                                       Page 14 of 21               Created on 1st December 2009 
  
  
  

 

6. Mobile Working  

Mobile working can generate significant returns, help create a better working experience for staff, aid 
service delivery and improve customer service. The introduction of mobile computing for Council staff 

can add to a culture of improving effectiveness and efficiency, thereby leading to potentially higher 
ratings from CAA/Use of Resources ratings, as well as contributing to our carbon reduction 

programms. 

Informal occasional Home Working is already adopted for staff, and recent investments in Citrix 
tecnlologies help to ensure that these services are safe, secure, and reliable, however there are also a 

number of areas identified that could (subject to formal feasibility) deliver service and welfare 
improvements, and further dialogue with our partners will help to ensure that a) the need is identified 

and defined clearly and b) the project (including realisation of benefits) is managed to completion. 

This may be by use of PDAs, Laptops, Blackberry devices and/or tablet PCs, however the actual 
solutions will be designed around the service and need, using an already secure ‘mobile ready’ 

infrastructure, rather than a one size fits all model.  

(The diagram under Infrastructure section shows this in more detail.)

19



 
 

Breckland ICT Strategy v0.1                                                                       Page 15 of 21               Created on 1st December 2009       

 

7. Implementation and Action Plan 

 

# Project Description 
Dependencies 

/ linked 

project 

Risk 
Effort 
(impl) 

Impact  Rationale/Status 
Target 

Completion 

Date 

1 Estateman 
Rents and estates 

management system 

None – but 
Audit and 

financial 
income benefits 

to be realized 

Low Low 

 
Low 

 

ICT element completed – 
however actions still to be done 

at Service level 
TBC 

2 PCI compliance 

Assess readiness for 
compliance regarding 

acceptance of credit card 

payments 

Likely to be an 
audit 

requirement 
Low Medium Medium 

Currently flagged as low risk as 
no credit card payments taken 

as yet however this will be a key 

requirement for future 

TBC 

3 

Licensing Service – 

Review and delivery 
of revised 

processes/systems 

Review of  end to end 

process, introduce an ICT 
system to manage 

licensing service. This will 

both reduce key authority 
risks and increase 

effectiveness of Licensing 
– as well as providing an 

opportunity to generate 

additional revenue 

Impacts on 

elements of 
Env Services, 

and also 

supports a 
move to Mobile 

Working. 

High High High 

Project well underway – 

organisational changes required 
to underpin the project next 

stages, system procurement in 

progress. Mobile working in 
scope of project 

End April 

2010 

4 
Govt Connect Phases 

3 & 4 

Phase 2 still underway. 

However Security 

requirements are likely to 
continue to increase, 

necessitating year on 
year spend in this area. 

Impacts on all 

users (internal) 
Med Low High 

Breckland are compliant 

currently, however awaiting 

further guidelines prior to 
preparing project plan for 

phases 3 & 4 
 

 
 

 

TBC 

2
0



 
 

Breckland ICT Strategy v0.1                                                                       Page 16 of 21               Created on 1st December 2009       

 

# Project Description 
Dependencies 

/ linked 

project 

Risk 
Effort 
(impl) 

Impact  Rationale/Status 
Target 

Completion 

Date 

5 Website upgrade 

Need to increase 
accessibility and 

availability of self service 

on website, as well as 
significantly improving 

look and feel. 

Customer 
Access Strategy 

/ all customer 

facing services 

Low High Low 

Initial changes to front page 
complete, awaiting Comms to 

launch. Full redesign to be 

planned (consideration to be 
given to S-Norfolk share?) 

TBC - 

6 Fax gateway 
Determine feasibility of 

adopting web/email 
based faxing solutions 

All users Low Low Low Not started TBC 

7 Telephony refresh 

Refresh/upgrade 
telephony 

systems/services within 
Breckland 

All 
users/customer 

access 
strategy/Mobile 

working 

Low Med Med 

External consultancy review to 
drive next steps as regards 

preferred technology. Must 
support mobile working models. 

TBC 

8 Track and Assist 

Determine feasibility of 
tracking devices for 

mobile devices – to 

support Carbon 
commitment and cost 

savings. 

All remote 
workers 

Low low Low 
To be considered alongside 

other financial efficiency 

programmes 

TBC 

9 

Shared Working 

Business Cases (e.g. 

Norfolk/S-
Norfolk/Forest Heath 

etc) 

Develop business cases 

for potential shared 

service oppoortunities 

All Low High High Initiation Dec/Jan 2010 TBC 

10 
NLPG/GIS 

Ocella 

Strategy to be discussed 
and agreed with our 

Planning and Building 
control partners, Capita 

Symonds. 

 
 
 

N/K 
 
 
 

N/K N/K N/K N/K N/K 

2
1



 
 

Breckland ICT Strategy v0.1                                                                       Page 17 of 21               Created on 1st December 2009       

 

# Project Description 
Dependencies 

/ linked 

project 

Risk 
Effort 
(impl) 

Impact  Rationale/Status 
Target 

Completion 

Date 

11 
CRM updates 

(LAGAN) eforms 

(To be driven by 
Customer Access 

strategy/Web site 

redesign) 

Connected 
systems and 

services 
Med Low Low 

Improvements to citizens and 
staff 

TBC 

12 
Electronic Document 

Management 

Review feasibility of 

adoption of Electronic 

Document Management 
– in line with potential 

Shared Services models 
to maximize benefits and 

maximize office space 

All Low High High 
Project has been on hold as 

awaiting stronger Business 

Case. This ma 

TBC 

13 
Review 

Printing/photocopying 

Reduce volumes of 
hardcopy output and 

reduce spend on printing 

Financial 
Efficiency 

programme 

Low Med Med 
Print Strategy awaiting approval. 

Rational is reduced printing 

costs 

April 2010 

14 
Review 

Telephony/Data costs 

Consider alternative 
providers, based on 

better value for money 

Financial 
Efficiency 

programme 

Low Low Low   

15 
Review ICT Service 

Costs 

Steria Service review – 

recognising contract end 
date 2011 

Financial 

Efficiency 
programme 

Low High High   

 

 
 

 

 
 

 

 

 

2
2



23



 
 

Breckland ICT Strategy v0.1                                                                       Page 19 of 21               Created on 1st December 2009  
   
  

 

8. List of Achievements 2008/9 

The table below shows what the BI/ICT team have achieved in the past 12 months  

(2008/09) for reference: 

 

• Provision of valuable support to 
Office Moves project;  

• Achievement of Govt Connect 
Accreditation;  

• Delivery of Council tax optimisation 
project – significantly reducing 
turnaround time for residents with 

Council Tax changes. 

• Successful creation of secure and 
separate CAPITA/Planning & 
Building control network – 

achievable within existing 

Breckland infrastructure;  

• Successful delivery of Estateman – 
Estates Management/Rents software;  

• Introduction of wireless 
connectivity to Committee rooms;  

• Development of a long term ‘Business 
Improvement’ project Plan to 2014;  

• Process mapping of Pest Control 
services for the Contact Centre. 

• Initiation of key risk reduction/service 
improvement project in Licensing;  

• Instigation of revised 
supplier/contract arrangements for 
printers/photocopiers;  

• Delivery of new Planning On-Line 
service for residents (with 
Steria/Capita);  

• Provision of additional web support 
for housing, Capita/Planning, and 
revised front page for our 
externally facing Internet;  

• Redevelopment of ICT/BIT Model 
Office, improved training facilities for 

staff;  

• Initiation of PC and Server refresh 
programme, including expanding 

our VM Ware capacity;  

• Development of Citrix server farm, 
providing enhanced capabilities for 

mobile working;  

• Introduction of improved 
governance arrangements for 

BIT/ICT projects – (has 
contributed to a £45k spend 

avoidance);  

• Closer collaboration between ICT/BIT 
teams and business, which has 

allowed us to replace the ICT 
Steering Group with a more 
influential Business Improvement Sub 

Committee  

• Realisation of over £5k of savings 
through more effective 

management of mobile phone 
contracts; 

 

 

24



 
 

Breckland ICT Strategy v0.1                                                                       Page 20 of 21               Created on 1st December 2009  
   
  

 

9. Appendix A – Example of Governance/Project Prioritisation 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

25



 
 

Breckland ICT Strategy v0.1                                                                       Page 21 of 21               Created on 1st December 2009  
   
  

 

10.  Appendix B – Project Interrelationships 

 

Internal 

Technology 
Information 

Knowledge 

Customer, Partners, Government E-Business 

Infrastructure Productivity 

External 

Government 
Connect 

Data & 
Telephony 
Network 

Hardware 

(SAN, VM) 

Business Core 
Applications   
(e.g. Email) 

Disaster 
Recovery & 
Continuity 

Government 
Connect 

Intranet 

Customer (call 
centre, CSCs) 

Web (e.g. Social 

Networking) 

Extranet 

Self-serve E-Business, 

Payments online 

Business 
Improvement 

Mobile Working 

Workflow, 

Procedures 

Member 
Support 

PCI Compliance 

Decision Making 
Systems 

Customer data 

Methods 
(Project Mgmt) 

EU Directives & 

Legislation 

Partnership 

working 

Service Reviews 

Internet 

26



 

 
     
 
 

        Breckland Council  
 

 

        

 

     

 

 
 

Printing Strategy  
 

Version: 0.1 
November 2009 

 

Agenda Item 7

27



28



 
 

Breckland Print Strategy v0.1                            Page 3 of 13 Created on 24th November 2009 
  
  
  

 

Document control 

 

Version history 

Version Date Comments 

1(Draft)_0.1 1 December 2009 First Draft 

   

   

   

 

 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 

 
 

 
 
 

 
 

 
Publishers Reference: 

 

Author Kevin Taylor 

Review Date  

Effective date TBD 

Document Version 0.1 

Document Location  L:\Keep\ICT\ICT Strategy 

 

 

29



 
 

Breckland Print Strategy v0.1                            Page 4 of 13 Created on 24th November 2009 
  
  
  

 

 Contents 

1. Background 5 

2. Issues/Risks/Constraints 6 

3. Opportunities 8 

4. Potential Savings 11 

5. Recommendations/Action Plan 12 

30



 
 

Breckland Print Strategy v0.1                            Page 5 of 13 Created on 24th November 2009 
  
  
  

 

1.  Background 

Many businesses have a printer strategy based on individual need that has evolved 
over many years with little regard for the total cost of printing across the entire 

organisation. 

By addressing the needs of the individual ahead of the Council, it is difficult for the 
Council to understand how much it costs to own and run printers and how many 

printers and what consumables they possess. 

Spending on print office management is typically uncontrolled with ancillary 

products such as consumables being bought from a number of suppliers for a wide 
range of items/equipment. 

According to external sources such as Gartner, research suggests that that by 

evaluating the total cost of printers and other output devices, printing costs can be 
cut by between 10% and 30%. These savings come from reduced IT support costs, 
reduced costs of consumables, reduced hardware repair costs, reduced costs to 

install and upgrade devices, reduced energy costs, improved use of office space 
and reduced hard copy device equipment costs. 

The ICT team has conducted an on site audit, and procured print management 
software on the corporate network for a number of months, all of which has 

contributed to development of this strategy and has assisted in identifying potential 
improvements in running costs and reducing wastage. 

There has historically been little interest in print & output management, which is 
costing the Council many thousands of pounds each year, as print and output 
management is rarely viewed as an “important strategic concern”, however there is 

the need for a fundamental re-education for staff on printing to raise awareness of 

costs, particularly when printing multiple copies, and multiple colour outputs.  

The paperless office, an aiming point for many years now, seems to be still some 
distance away as national studies indicate that printing has increased year on year, 

as more staff print from the internet and other external sources – based on a view 

that the costs are minimal. However our print management software is helping the 
Council regain some control, with savings of 10%-30% that could be achieved 
merely by ‘rightsizing’ the number of faxes, printers, scanners & copiers in use. By 

examining the Council’s usage of printers, photocopiers, scanners and fax 
machines, thereby assessing the running cost of each individual device, the Council 

can determine those that are really needed and those that aren’t. By determining 
the true requirements for printers within the Council we can determine those 

devices which are either under utilised or overworked, and a better balance can be 
achieved for use of printers. 

31



 
 

Breckland Print Strategy v0.1                            Page 6 of 13 Created on 24th November 2009 
  
  
  

 

2. Issues/Risks/Constraints 

The Council has a wide range of output devices consisting of many different makes 
and models. This wide range is difficult to support and is more expensive due to the 

diverse makes and models means wide ranges of consumables held without 

benefitting from economies of scale. Many of these consumables are stocked and 
sometimes never used – which represents a potential waste.  

Thin client (Citrix) users may also experience problems in getting the wide variety 

of printers to work properly in that environment. Reducing range and quantity of 

printers would help alleviate this. 

The output devices include printers, photocopiers, scanners and fax machines and 

whilst the majority of these have been purchased through ICT, some have been 

not, and could have been purchased at higher cost. There are also a number of 
print/copier contracts in place (some purchased outright, others leased or rented 
and some charged on a per print basis) – all with varying terms and conditions that 

ideally need to be amalgamated to make best use of efficient procurement 
practices.  

The Council also has a corporate (reprographic) printing facility based in Dereham – 
which is not currently on the Corporate Network meaning that there is no cirect 

access to these high output, low cost printing devices (however there is a job 
management system in place which does assist with billing and scheduling). It may 

also be wise to look at the whole function of the print room in light of this strategy 
to ensure that they are included and that best use is made of the equipment they 
have already invested in. 

It seems likely in coming years that some of the traditional printed output from the 

print room will diminish as more and more Council documents such as committee 
papers are made available online and distributed electronically, however it will need 
a commitment from Members to continue to work this way, as there may be a 

tendency to slip back to printed output if not managed well.  

NB Members and Officers may choose to review its approach regarding Members 
ICT provision, and may consider an ‘allowance based’ arrangement that would put 
Members in control of the spend (i.e. payment of an annual allowance that covers 
provision of PC/laptop/broadband/printer/consumables) – which means that 
Members can make a personal saving if they choose to reduce their printing. 

There is currently no single corporate contract in place for the supply of printers, 
photocopiers or scanners, which denies the Council the opportunity to make savings 

from a consolidated contract, allowing economies of scale to drive down the total 
cost of ownership. 

The current culture with regard to printed output across the Council needs to be 
changed and this will prove to be the most difficult challenge to the introduction of 

32



 
 

Breckland Print Strategy v0.1                            Page 7 of 13 Created on 24th November 2009 
  
  
  

 

a successful printing strategy. Staff are used to printing off emails and multiple 

copies of documents, most of which could be read on screen.  

Print Management software can limit and manage this – however the delivery of 
this message and application of centralised controls need to be managed carefully 
to ensure staff are on board and appreciate the rationale for change.  

The Council already has a policy of only purchasing duplex printers and has 

standardised wherever possible however the Council still has too many printing 
devices in place. The ICT Service has conducted a survey of printing devices across 
the authority and found a general ratio of 1 printer to about 6 staff, however best 

practice elsewhere indicate that a 1:30 ratio can work effectively, and still deliver 
savings, whilst also reducing our requirement for power and space, and reducing 

our overall carbon footprint as well. 

33



 
 

Breckland Print Strategy v0.1                            Page 8 of 13 Created on 24th November 2009 
  
  
  

 

3. Opportunities 

There are a number of opportunities available to Breckland for printing. One option 
is to go out to tender for a print partner to provide the Council with a range of Multi 

Function Devices (MFDs) and to manage the print estate.  

This will entail replacing the whole printer fleet within an agreed time span and will 
potentially reduce the existing large number of differing model types to between 3 

and 5. However it is key that users must be kept informed of the benefits of this 

print strategy with provision of extra functionality, reduced costs, reduced paper 

and consumables usage, reduced power consumption and greater space. 

An alternative option is for the Council to purchase or lease MFDs outright and 

manage the print estate in house. This will require a capital outlay and some 

negligible ICT staff resources to manage this estate. 

Changing the culture of the organisation through education is critical to the success 
of this, this activity has already kicked off, informing users of proposed changes, 

and recommending removal of colour facilities.  

A corporate contract for the supply of stationary already exists. A similar contract 

for MFDs and associated consumables will enable savings to be made across the 
Council, and a revised framework model for MFDs is currently being appraised, and 

will enable the Council to monitor usage and costs in a way not previously possible. 

The new devices can also be intelligent enough to allow the automatic ordering of 

consumables as and when needed thus stopping the potential for overstocking and 
keeping consumables for printers that no longer exist. 

Faults and problems can also be automatically diagnosed and raised with the ICT 

service desk and/or the partner’s service desk and engineers and spares will be 

automatically sent to site to enable timely maintenance and repairs. 

In conjunction with the new range of devices it is essential to continue to deploy 
print management software. This will provide complete monitoring of the printed 

output to identify the true costs for each department. This can also allow the 

automatic routing of prints to the best printer on pre set criteria (proximity, cost or 
quantity) – however there is a management overhead for this of approx ½ day per 
month. 

The integration of the print room into the strategy is essential so that large volume 
print runs can be automatically routed there, maximising the use of the print room 

equipment and ensuring the most cost effective print devices are used. 

The cost of printing can then be reported in detail and charged on a usage basis, 

which, with education, should reduce much of the casual and often unnecessary 
printing that currently takes place. 

34



 
 

Breckland Print Strategy v0.1                            Page 9 of 13 Created on 24th November 2009 
  
  
  

 

Access to the improved functionality of these devices can be controlled centrally 

and set per user or per group – see below for further info. New MFDs can also have 

the option of either card entry or code entry to release print jobs, which removes 
issues of security and confidentiality that have already been raised by some users. 

See below a screen shot of the software management tool and the controls that can 

be applied per printer (costs user definable on separate pages) 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

35



 
 

Breckland Print Strategy v0.1                            Page 10 of 13 Created on 24th November 2009 
  
  
  

 

See below screenshot of reports available from the Print Manager software 

 

Due to the fact we will possibly have only 5 or 6 models of printers available, 
training for the users on these devices will also be much simpler. 

All users will be able to have the full functionality of the MFDs from any location on 

the network or from remote locations where applicable. 

It is also recognised that there is a growing drive to scan to disk rather than keep 
printed output, therefore devices will still have scanning capabilities, however the 
ICT team are reviewing the need for faxing capabilities given the wide range of 

email based faxing solutions already in the marketplace. This would support any 

future drive towards Document Image Processing/Electronic Document 
Management. 

36



 
 

Breckland Print Strategy v0.1                            Page 11 of 13 Created on 24th November 2009 
  
  
  

 

4. Potential Savings 

Financial 

Through discussions with suppliers, through involvement with external consultants 

and by examining case studies of similar implementations, potential savings in the 

region of £20-30k p.a are expected, based on supplier changes and standardisation 
of hardware, however this excludes benefits gained from re-education of users and 

cultural change as regards use and impact of changes in usage. 

However the savings will only be maximised if this strategy is made compulsory 

across the Council and once the existing print output estate is replaced.  

Environmental 

 The power, light and carbon reduction benefits have yet to be calculated, however 

changes to the printing strategy will benefit the Council’s Green and Environmental 
strategies. 

 

 

37



 
 

Breckland Print Strategy v0.1                            Page 12 of 13 Created on 24th November 2009 
  
  
  

 

5. Recommendations/Action Plan 

1) Initiate a staff education process to alert staff of the costs of printing, and 
ensuring that printing is only done when absolutely necessary. 

TARGET – End March 2010 (underway) 

2) Continue to roll out Print Management software to add greater controls, and 
provide improved management reporting. This will be key to the identification of 

benefits. 

TARGET – End Dec 2009 

3) Removal of less efficient high ‘cost per copy’ printers (where cost efficient to do 
so) 

TARGET – End July 2010 

4) Leverage our print contracts with current suppliers to ensure we are getting best 
value for money 

TARGET – End June 2010 

5) Consider connecting print room to the corporate network, but ensure this is 
managed and controlled by Print Room Manager (consider colour only to print room 

and B/W to office based printers.) To discuss with Print Room 

TARGET – End April 2010 

6) Continue to raise awareness of the strategy and its benefits through a number of 
workshops and communications 

TARGET – Ongoing (underway) 

7) Roll out Print Management software to Thetford – also helping to reduce 
volumes of colour printing  

TARGET – End June 2010 – subject to funding availability 

8) Review current charging mechanisms for prints/copies used 

TARGET – End March 2010 – based on Print Management reports 

9) Consider introducing Performance Management targets for Service Areas to 

achieve 

TARGET – End Aug 2010 

 

38



 
 

Breckland Print Strategy v0.1                            Page 13 of 13 Created on 24th November 2009 
  
  
  

 

10) Continue to investigate potential collaboration with other Local Authorities as 

regards bulk printing 

TARGET – End Aug 2010 

11) Review ‘pre printed’ paper contracts, to see if this is still more effective than 
printing via a printer 

TARGET – End June 2010 

12) Review DIP/EDRM as potential means in which to access paper info online. 

TARGET – To determine for inclusion within ICT Strategy 

13) Review committee paper processes to reduce need for hardcopy output 

TARGET – End Feb 2010 (underway 

 

 

 

 

 

39



Breckland Council Customer Access Strategy 

Monica R Coffey Customer Programme Manager final version  0 

 

 
 
 
 
 

Breckland Council 
 

Customer Access Strategy 
 

2009 -2012 
 
 

 

 
 

Breckland –  

a better place, a brighter futurea better place, a brighter futurea better place, a brighter futurea better place, a brighter future    
    

Note to colleagues 
This document needs your views 

    
 
 

 
 
 
Contents                                                                     Page 

Agenda Item 8

40



Breckland Council Customer Access Strategy 

Monica R Coffey Customer Programme Manager final version  1 

 
o  Foreword                                                                            2 

 
o  Introduction                                                                        3 

 
o  Background                                                                         6 

 
o  The Vision                                                                           7 

 
o  Strategy Benefits                                                                 8 

 
o  Breckland Council’s Customer Service Standards              9 

 
o  Multiple Access Channels                                                  11 

 
o  Enabling Technology                                                         12 

 
o  Equality                                                                              13 

 
o  Communications                                                                14 

 
o  Seamless Service                                                              15 

 
o  Value for Money                                                                 16 

 
o  Quality Management                                                          17 

 
o  Governance                                                                       18 

 
o  Action Plan 2009 – 2012                                                    19 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Foreword 

41



Breckland Council Customer Access Strategy 

Monica R Coffey Customer Programme Manager final version  2 

 
Welcome to the ‘Customer access Strategy for 2009 – 2012. 

The strategy sets out our vision for customer services and how we intend to  

improve on our existing customer access arrangements and how these  

improvements will be achieved. 

 

At Breckland Council we strive to provide high standards of service  

together with value for money for local people and our mission statement has  

been chosen to reflect this; 

 

“Putting the customer at the heart of everything we do and to view the  

world from our customers’ perspective; we need to put ourselves in our  

Citizens’ Shoes” 

 

We believe we must continue to work with feedback to improve where  

necessary, and to do this we hold regular Customer Forums, consult the  

Citizens’ Panel, conduct quarterly Customer Satisfaction Surveys and  

participate in road shows across the district. To ensure social inclusion we have 

adopted a “design for all” approach by providing multiple access channels at  

times and locations convenient to our customers. 

 

The purpose of our Customer Access Strategy is to explain what we will do to get customer service 

right first time, every time, at the first point of contact. It sets out our priorities and the outcomes we 

hope to achieve for local people. 

 

Kay Fisher 

Councillor Kay Fisher 

Executive member for Environmental Well-being and Customer Contact 

 

 

 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Information 

 
Councillor Kay Fisher 
Executive member for  
Environmental Well-Being 
and Customer Contact 

42



Breckland Council Customer Access Strategy 

Monica R Coffey Customer Programme Manager final version  3 

 

The strategy is a clear and ambitious programme to deliver significant improvements to customer 

access to services and is supported by a number of related strategies, including:- 

 

o  Service Plans 

o  Sustainable Community Strategy 

o  Business Plan  

o  IEG5 & 6 Statement (explain what these are as this may not be understood by customers) 

o   

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
Background 
 

43



Breckland Council Customer Access Strategy 

Monica R Coffey Customer Programme Manager final version  4 

Our Customer Contact Centre went live January 2005 with an aim of 80% resolution of 
customer queries at the first point of contact which was achieved through customer 
focused and multi-skilled staff. A phased approach was undertaken answering ‘frequently 
asked questions’ and ‘easy to answer questions’ The goal was to migrate all services into 
the Contact Centre is this still the goal? If not may be best to leave out? 
 
o January 2005 – Benefits, Council tax & National Non-Domestic Rates – Compliments 

& Complaints, General Enquiries 
o April 2005 – Environmental Services 
o May 2005 – Planning & Building Control and Environmental Planning 
o March 2006 – Electoral Services 
 
 
Within our 5 Market Towns the Customer Service Centres have evolved so that not only 
do we take in and verify documents for Housing & Benefits claims, we now provide ease 
of access to services, ensuring we offer the same level of service to customers whether 
they choose to access our services by telephone, through the website or face to face.  
 

o Council Tax arrangements - from moving in, moving out, taking debit card payments  
to setting up a Direct Debit payment arrangement 

o Validation of concessionary travel passes and processing documentation 
o Webcam facility in Attleborough, Swaffham, Thetford & Watton for photos for 

concessionary bus passes 
o Ability to report fly-tipping, abandoned vehicles, missed bins, request bulky waste 

collections and garden waste bins. 
o Provision of Council information, leaflets and application forms 

 
 
Our website was re-launched in December 2005 and was greatly improved with easier 
access to information. This is an area we will continue to focus on through this strategy.. 

 
A high level of Customer Service is already being delivered and our staff will continue to 
their skills to implement new ideas for improvements around Customer Service delivery. 
It is important to learn from others whilst sharing our successes together with solutions to 
problems that we have overcome. 
 
It is not only the Customer Service Team that strives to provide excellent 
Customer Service, the culture for all service areas within the Council is that the customer 
comes first and we continuously aim to exceed customer’s expectations.  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

The Vision 
 

44



Breckland Council Customer Access Strategy 

Monica R Coffey Customer Programme Manager final version  5 

The purpose of our strategy is to set out our vision for customer access to services, how 
we propose to improve on our existing customer access arrangements and setting out 
our plans on how improvement will be achieved. 
 
This strategy will assist us to resource our plans for delivering customer services and 
how we will communicate our vision and the plans to the public, businesses, employees 
and Elected Members. The strategy also provides a key focus for the Central 
Government Electronic Government Agenda 
 
Our vision for excellence in customer access: 
 
“We aim to get customer service right first time every time at the first point of contact – 
wherever that happens – assisting, informing and reacting swiftly to demands.”  

 
This vision clearly supports our values and aims which are defined within our  
 

Business Plan Business Plan Business Plan Business Plan growing together 2008 growing together 2008 growing together 2008 growing together 2008 –––– 14 14 14 14    
    
Accessible, Accountable, Democratic, Equality, Equitable, Ethical, Open & Accessible, Accountable, Democratic, Equality, Equitable, Ethical, Open & Accessible, Accountable, Democratic, Equality, Equitable, Ethical, Open & Accessible, Accountable, Democratic, Equality, Equitable, Ethical, Open & 
SustainableSustainableSustainableSustainable    
    
Could make reference to the Business Plan priority of ‘Your Council Your Services? 

 
 

o Fairness: our aspirations are to ensure equality of opportunity and choice through all 
our services. The approach of this Strategy is clearly to provide fair access to services 
for all communities within the district. 

 
o Transformation: our aspirations are to transform the way in which the public interacts 

with, and benefits from, local public services. 
 

o Quality Services: the strategy will continue to drive improvement in access to 
services. It will develop and set standards for improving personal choice for 
customers as well as improved efficiency and quality, building on current high levels.  

o Relevant services: designed around the need of our customer using the 
understanding from engagement and dialogue with users putting the customer first 

o Accessible:  through modern coordinated delivery channels in locations, at times and 
in ways which ensure social inclusion, minimising where possible the need to travel. 

o Consistent & Accurate:  using information from one central source, kept up to date, 
relevant and effective to ensure the same level of service and same information 
available to all and that all staff put themselves in the Citizens’ Shoes 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

45



Breckland Council Customer Access Strategy 

Monica R Coffey Customer Programme Manager final version  6 

Strategy Benefits 
 
Implementing this strategy is intended to provide customers with equality of access to all 
services and to achieve our vision. The overall service to customers will improve and 
administration will be reduced. Delivering the objectives will result in an increase in 
efficiency and provide the opportunity to take other costs out of the system. 
 
Some of the benefits will include: 
 
For customers:  
 

o Improved Customer satisfaction 
o Greater choice and convenience 
o Better customer service and provision of information 
o Resolution of queries at the first point of contact 
o Joined-up services 
o No unnecessary bureaucracy 
o Services accessible to all, in addition to the market town customer service centres, 

the aim is to introduce mobile working ensuring the rural communities are not 
disadvantaged  

o Greater involvement in the design, review and evaluation of services. 
o Listening to and working with your honest and valuable feedback 

 
For staff  
 

o Improved staff satisfaction 
o Customer-focused organisation  
o Led by confident, attentive and supportive people 
o Part of a progressive organisation which is modern, fresh and entrepreneurial 
o An ‘invest to save’ approach to customer services 
o Empowerment and involvement in shaping the improved service by attending 

Business Improvement workshops - staff use system thinking processes to change 
they way we work 

o Improved functionality of customer service centres  

o Ease of reporting management information 

o Continuous process improvement 
o Better productive time to focus on the customer. 

 
 
For Breckland 
 

o Clear focus on the customer and services targeted to reflect need 
o Access channels that are ‘state of the art’, including a full range of electronic services 
o Efficiency gains and better value for money 
o Re-investment  
o Improved relationships with key stakeholders and other service providers 
o Higher customer satisfaction ratings 
o Transferability value of redesigned services for entrepreneurial activity 
o Improved quality of life. 

 
 
 
 

 

46



Breckland Council Customer Access Strategy 

Monica R Coffey Customer Programme Manager final version  7 

Breckland Council Customer Service Standards 
Our existing Customer Service Standards support our vision to ensure that our customers 
are at the heart of our actions. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
We promise to: This is a very definite statement, perhaps it could be: we aim to 
 

o Answer phone calls, professionally and courteously taking ownership. 
o See 85% of customers within 10 minutes. 
o Reply to letters within 10 working days. 
o Acknowledge E-mails the same day, and respond within two/three working days. 
o Always make an appointment when requested. 
o Deal with 90% of enquiries without further reference. 
o Give a polite, friendly and effective response. 
o Present ourselves as Service Professionals being neat, clean and always wearing 

name badges so our customers can recognise us. 
o Monitor compliments, complaints and comments to ensure we learn from what our 

customers tell us, and consult with local people to ensure we meet their needs 
more accurately in our programme of continuous improvement. 

 
 

 
 
 

Customer Programme 

Manager 

 

Team Leader

 

Team Leader

 

Supervisor

 

Supervisor

 

 Customer Contact 

Officer

 

 Customer Contact 

Officer

 

 Customer Contact 

Officer

 

 Customer Contact 

Officer

 

 Customer Contact 

Officer

 

 Customer Contact 

Officer

 

 Customer Contact 

Officer

 

 Customer Contact 

Officer

 

 Customer Contact 

Officer

 

 Customer Contact 

Officer

 

 Customer Contact 

Officer

 

 Customer Contact 

Officer

 

 Customer Contact 

Officer

 

 Customer Contact 

Officer

 

 Customer Contact 

Officer

 

 Customer Contact 

Officer

 

 Customer Contact 

Officer

 

 Customer Contact 

Officer

 

 Customer Contact 

Officer

 

 Customer Contact 

Officer

 

 Customer Contact 

Officer

 

 Customer Contact 

Officer

 

Team Manager

 

C
o

n
ta

c
t 

C
e

n
tr

e
S

e
rv

ic
e

 C
e

n
tre

s

Our Customer

47



Breckland Council Customer Access Strategy 

Monica R Coffey Customer Programme Manager final version  8 

However to enable us to progress further in achieving our vision of a customer focused 
strategy with the customer at the heart of all activity we will make a range of process, 
technology and people improvements. We aim to go the ‘extra mile’ for our customers by: 
 

o Designing and delivering services around customers’ choices and needs. 
o Measuring and publishing performance standards for customer service including 

complaints handling. 
o Ensuring social inclusion by adopting a ‘design for all’ approach that ensures that 

all customer needs are met irrespective of age, gender, disability, ethnic origin, 
race, religion or geographical location and in accordance with our commitment to 
the Equality Framework for Local Government .  

o Continuing to provide road shows in order to reach people who would not usually 
visit our offices. 

o Understanding our customers’ changing needs based on sound, focused 
customer research. 

o Continuing to expand the range of partner services delivered. 
o As one of the eight local authorities working in partnership with other public, 

voluntary and private sector organisations to deliver services to the people of 
Norfolk. We are an active member of the Customer Access Network (CAN ) 
currently working on a Mystery Shopping initiative 

o Developing a single view of customer contacts across all of the customer access 
channels through the continual development of our Customer Relationship 
Management software (CRM) Lagan Frontline. 

 

 

 

 
 
 

48



Breckland Council Customer Access Strategy 

Monica R Coffey Customer Programme Manager final version  9 

Multiple Access Channels 
 
Following on from our ongoing Customer Research through surveys, forums and focus 
groups with results showed that 70% wish to contact us by telephone, 25% Face to Face 
and the remaining 5% wish to utilise our website; we have implemented a number of 
changes to ensure that residents and visitors have improved access to Council and other 
public services. 
 
In order to achieve this we will ensure that: 
 

o Interactive web services remain available on a 24 x 7 basis. This will allow 
customers to look-up information and review advice, to make payments online and 
lodge service requests to be dealt with within normal working hours. We wish to 
increase the transactional functionality of the site. 

o The Customer Contact centre operates Monday to Friday from 08:00 to 18:00 
(closing Friday at 17:00 ) 

o Customer Service Centres operational hours vary dependant on town 
 

Are the times below fixed as it may be better to refer people to the website or the 
council phone number at they may be subject to change 
 
ATTLEBOROUGH - Community and Enterprise Centre, Church Street, 
Monday, Tuesday & Thursday 9am – 4.30pm 
Friday 9am – 4pm closed for Lunch 1pm ½ an hour every day 
DEREHAM - Michael Chaplin House, Station Road, 
Monday, Tuesday, Thursday and Friday 9am – 5pm 
Wednesday 9am – 4.15pm 
THETFORD - Breckland House, St Nicholas Street, 
Monday to Thursday 9am – 5 pm 
Friday 9am – 4.30pm 
SWAFFHAM - Town Hall, London Street, 
Monday 9am – 4pm - closed for Lunch 1pm ½ an hour 
Tuesday, Thursday and Friday 9.30am – 1pm 
WATTON - Wayland House, High Street, 
Wednesday 9am – 4.30pm 
Friday 9am – 4pm closed for Lunch 1pm ½ an hour both days 
 

o We will only use the voicemail facility as a last resort and remember that 
customers or callers prefer to speak to people. 

 
We recognise that our customers want to use different access channels for different 
purposes at different times. It is important therefore that we provide multiple service 
channels but that the same high level of service is delivered through all of them. 
 
We provide a range of access opportunities to allow the customer to interact with us, 
whether it is to seek information, guidance or service delivery. Where appropriate this 
extends to partner organisations. 
 
We provide web-enabled services and information by which all customers, particularly 
those in rural areas, can access services represented through remote electronic devices, 
either from their home or Libraries. 
. 
 
 

49



Breckland Council Customer Access Strategy 

Monica R Coffey Customer Programme Manager final version  10 

 
 
 

Enabling Technology 
 
The Government’s agenda for modernising the public sector, including local government, 
includes the rapid development of electronic service delivery. 
 
We aim to maintain the ‘Excellent’ rating achieved in an E-Government Access audit 
commission report November 2006, continuing to offer a seamless service to Breckland 
residents.  
 
Our ICT strategy seeks to deliver an infrastructure/platform to deliver the Councils key 
priorities, investigating viability of new and innovative ways of delivering services for the 
council, whilst respecting the need to deliver both ‘value for money’ for Breckland 
residents, and also recognising our commitment to environmental change.   
   
However the heart of this Customer Access Strategy is for enquiries to be resolved at first 
point of contact, avoiding double handling of queries and delivering fast, effective and 
efficient query resolution. This is in part achieved through the effective use of technology 
commonly known as Customer Relationship Management software (CRM) allowing 
specific customer cases to be created, managed and tracked to completion, as well as a 
means of measurement of key performance indicators and measures. 
 
Our CRM is a necessarily complex system, having the ability to integrate with key back 
office systems, effectively moving specialist knowledge from back office to front office – 
which is where our customers need it. 
 
The further development of CRM will help to support Breckland’s pro-active customer 
centric approach, and we intend to extend and improve our online capability by 
developing our website, www.breckland.gov.uk.   Its aim being to resolve the majority of 
residents queries 24/7 – allowing our skilled contact centre team to focus on more value 
added service delivery. However development of the web interface to look-up information 
and advice make further payments on-line, complete further electronic application forms, 
lodge service requests and text to tell in additional service areas. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

50



Breckland Council Customer Access Strategy 

Monica R Coffey Customer Programme Manager final version  11 

 
 
Equality 
 
The promotion of widespread access to the information and services we offer through the 
use of appropriate technologies will extend the service, particularly to those customers in 
most need of assistance. 
 
We aim to establish equality of access to all members and groups of the community. We 
currently provide the following in order to achieve this: 
 

o  Interpretation services 
o  Translation and transposition to Braille 
o  Large print 
o  Tape or any other media necessary to enable customers to communicate 
o  Electronic doors/ramps where appropriate 
o  Hearing loops 
o  Minicom 
o  Staff training 
o  Diversity monitoring/Customer Segmentation 
o  Obtaining data from the Pension Service and contacting customers to advise 

them that they may have an entitlement to one of our services of which they were 
unaware. 

 
However research highlights that the take up of our services in certain socio economic 
groups is lower than we would hope. We will ensure that we reach as many customers as 
possible in accordance with our Breckland Social Inclusion Strategy (is this still a live 
strategy?) by:  
 

o Producing literature in different languages. 
o Producing forms in different languages. 
o Building up relationships and trusts with groups who would not normally 

visit/contact the offices. 
o Attending social events planned by organisations such as Age Concern in an 

attempt to increase the take up of particular services such as benefits 
o Advertising our services on bus routes to reach those who reside in rural areas. 
o Holding Action Days with partner services to invite residents to become involved 

with the development of their area 
o Local Strategic Partnership (LSP) secured money from the Migration Impact 

Funding which will enable us to kick start a project of a One Stop Shop which will 
enable us to deliver a wider range of services by working with a variety of 
organisations, we also wish to enable mobile working which will take these 
services to our rural communities  

 
 
 
 
 
 
. 
 
 
 

51



Breckland Council Customer Access Strategy 

Monica R Coffey Customer Programme Manager final version  12 

 
 
 

Communications 
 
Just like any commercial business, our success depends on the satisfaction of our 
customers, and whether they believe services are easy to access and live up to their 
expectations. Therefore we regularly measure the views, perceptions, opinions and 
satisfaction of those who use our services. 
 
We believe that we use effective two-way communication to support our customer access 
strategy by: 
 

o Explaining about our services that are available and how to access them. 
o Taking further steps to ensure that we identify and reach people who are unaware 

of the services available to them and any entitlements that they may have. 
o Ensuring that our written communication is jargon free. 
o Deliver on promises, keeping the customer informed at all times even when there 

is no news. 
o Using electronic media (E-government) to transform services, making them more 

accessible, more convenient and more responsive. 
o Generating changes in behaviour, such as encouraging people to access services 

online. 
o Promoting equality of access, ensuring that information is available to everyone at 

the right time and in the format they prefer, supporting strategies for valuing 
diversity and social inclusion. 

o Developing and implementing an information strategy when?, which ensures the 
provision of appropriately, branded, high quality written information (e.g. leaflets, 
brochures) and plasma displays from across all service units within customer 
service centres and information points with partner organisations.  

o Highlighting performance improvements, celebrating success and achievements, 
linked to the Comprehensive Area Assessment framework. 

o Developing a culture where the importance of effective communications in 
delivering excellence in customer service is acknowledged, and reflected in 
contact with staff that is welcoming, informative, responsive, courteous and 
positive. 

o Undertaking meaningful consultation with local people and involving them, and 
feeding back on how their views have informed service developments and 
change. 

o Ensuring local people have ongoing opportunities to compliment, complain and 
provide suggestions for improvement 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 

52



Breckland Council Customer Access Strategy 

Monica R Coffey Customer Programme Manager final version  13 

 
 
 
Seamless Service 
 
Business Improvement using systems thinking has been used to streamline the customer 
interface of the services delivered by our Customer Contact and Customer Service 
Centres and to integrate these customer processes with a number of the supporting back 
office processes. This provides a consistent approach for handling standard processes 
across the customer services concerned and provides a ‘One Team’ approach. As a 
result 90% of request for Council Tax service are resolved at the first point of contact. 
 
We aim to build on this to develop a customer service that works with service areas and 
partner organisations to provide efficient and effective services to the public. This will be 
achieved by: 
 

o Further integration of back and front office process and systems, where 
appropriate. 

 
o Further use of Partners’ IT systems. 

 
o Adopting approved standards for identifying and referencing customers, 

businesses and property to enable joined working with other service providers. 
 

o Strengthening our existing links with partner organisations to provide smooth, 
joined-up and seamless access to services in excess of purely Council related 
services, across all access channels providing effective holistic service delivery to 
meet customer needs.  

 
o Expanding the range of partner services delivered through the Customer Service 

Centres. 
 

o Delivering shared services with neighbouring authorities as part of the Customer 
Access Network (CAN) within Norfolk.  

 
o Increasing the range and inter-activeness of web-enable services. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

53



Breckland Council Customer Access Strategy 

Monica R Coffey Customer Programme Manager final version  14 

 

 
Value for Money 
 
Breckland Council has a regional reputation for being at the very forefront of 
improvement in public services.  
 
All services, processes and infrastructure will undergo continuous review to achieve 
maximum value for money and we will: 
 

o Strive to achieve first-time answers to customer enquiries. 
o Minimise waiting and response times. 
o Review the current procedures for call handling and implement any required 

changes to improve performance. 
o Promote customer self-service. 
o Feedback into the Council’s Asset Management Plan (not sure we have one of 

these currently) and Capital Strategy on service priorities, service delivery, 
points of contact, accessibility and cost effectiveness, which result in changes 
to capital resources. 

o Continue to explore partnership opportunities with other organisations to share 
funding. 

o Strive to achieve a corporate Customer Service Excellence (CSE) the 
Government Standard accreditation formerly known as the Chartermark  

o Endeavour to surpass our recent Mystery Shopper  
 
Our customer charter and measures that we work towards 

 
 
o Calls will be answered by professional, customer focussed officers who will take 

ownership of your enquiry or request for service. 
 
o More than 5% of officers’ time to be spent on customer focussed training 

 
o Consistently achieving > 85% in the Customer Satisfaction Surveys 

 
o Finance Performance Expenditure within 3% 

 
o Staff Satisfaction to be greater than 70% 
 
o Less than an average of 7 days lost due to sickness per employee. 

 
o Face to face contact 85% of Customers to be seen within 10 minutes. How is this 

measured? 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

54



Breckland Council Customer Access Strategy 

Monica R Coffey Customer Programme Manager final version  15 

 
 

 
 
Quality Management 
 
Our Business Plan provides the foundation on how we work delivering efficiency and 
effectiveness as an organisation and as an employer. 
 
 
We will further facilitate the Plan by: 
 

o Employee Performance Development Reviews. 
 
o Performance Management - measurable performance standards for customer 

service including complaints handling. 
 

o Monitoring customer satisfaction. 
 

o Undertake End-to-End Process Review to ensure services delivered by Customer 
Contact & Service Centres work efficiently and effectively with Service Areas 

 
o Extensive training including NVQ’s in Customer Service. 

 
o Recruitment initiatives such as open days. 

 
o Benchmarking against other councils and private organisations and actively 

participate in the Public Sector Benchmark Group. 
 

o Attaining recognised quality concepts such as CSE the Government Standard 
Charter Mark and Investors in People (IIP) award  

 
o Investment in ICT and suitable support mechanisms. 

 
o Introducing any remaining services, which are not currently handled by  the 

Customer Contact Centre by the end 2010 Is this corporately agreed? 
 

o Reviewing and implementing any changes to procedures for call handling to 
further improvement. 

 
o Visiting Local Authorities who have received recognition for “Best Practise”. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

55



Breckland Council Customer Access Strategy 

Monica R Coffey Customer Programme Manager final version  16 

 
 
 
 
Governance 
 
We have a lead Member and Director responsible for ensuring access to services is 
developed and improved. The Customer Contact Team Manager will carry out day to day 
performance and quality management and the following steps will also be taken to 
monitor the Customer Service provided by Breckland Council: 
 

o Performance against our Customer Service Standards will be publicised regularly 
(where?). 

 
o The Head of Customer Services will ensure appropriate financial management of 

customer services. 
 

o A quarterly Performance Clinic is held with the Executive members and Service 
Director plus the Performance Management Team. The specific management 
information data captured via the HiPath Pro-centre reports and the Lagan 
Frontline reports, plus updates on projects are recorded using the TEN 
Performance Management software  

 
o Quality will be monitored through call coaching on a monthly basis and mystery 

shopping on a quarterly basis in collaboration with the Customer Access Network 
within Norfolk. (CAN County & District Councils + other Public sector and 
voluntary organisations)  

 
o We will present The Service Team Plan to the Full Council annually (do we? The 

Annual Delivery Plan goes to Cabinet) 
 

National Indicators & Projects 
 

NI14 
 
SP-CS 02 

motion of Text to Tell 
o Record avoidable contacts 
o Take note of customer feedback 
o Indentify trends and issues 
o Feedback to service areas to enable resolution  
o Amend process or correspondence 

integration of back office  

Projects 
 
OP-CS 01 

o Expand Customer Service Centres operational 
hours and service delivery within the 5 Market 
Towns 

SP-CS 01 
o Roll out of Council Tax Front Office 

Optimisation to all Customer service officers 

CSE Accreditation 
 
SP-CS 03 

o Corporate building blocks approach 
o Time line from November 2009 to March 2011 

56



Breckland Council Customer Access Strategy 

Monica R Coffey Customer Programme Manager final version  17 

 
 
 
 
 

 
Action Plan 2009 – 2012 
 
We have a clear vision for the delivery of services across multiple access channels. This 
is underpinned by existing initiatives including our Customer Contact Centre and current 
Customer Service Centres within our 5 Market Towns and the website. 
 

E-enabled service 

motion of Text to Tell 

o Review content and usage of Website  
o Promotion of Web Access 
o Enable self-service e-forms 
o Further integration of back office systems 
o Promotion of Text/SMS usage 
o Digital TV   
o Tell Us Once – April 2010     Further 

integration of back office systems 

Service Transformation 

 
o Continue to review service delivery using 

Systems thinking which places the customer at 
the heart of all we do 

o Review existing scripting, processes and case 
creation bringing to the Front any transactional 
processes to allow a One & Done. 

 

 
Improve Service Levels 
for call handling 
 

 
o Corporate approach and standard 
o Measure Quality and outcomes above quantity 
o Increase resolution rate at first point of contact 

rather than hand-offs 
 

 
Continued  infrastructure 
and Network upgrade 
 

 
o Build an infrastructure across the district to 

better enable speed and ease of access for 
both Officers and Customers   

o Upgrade or review our current digital telephony 
platform 

o Upgrade or review our current Contact centre 
telephone system HiPath Pro centre – to 
enable flexibility of call distribution regardless of 
location.  

o Upgrade our CRM system Lagan Frontline 6.1 
to enable greater functionality 

o Install BPM to enable joined up working 
o Single repository of information – enabling 

everyone to equal access to consistent, 
accurate and up to date  

 

  

57



Breckland Council Customer Access Strategy 

Monica R Coffey Customer Programme Manager final version  18 

CSE the Government 
Standard 
 

Attain a corporate Customer Service Excellence 
the Government Standard accreditation (replacing 
Charter Mark) in a building block approach by 
March 2011 
 

 
Customer Insight 
 

o Each service area will undertake a 
segmentation questionnaire, impression rating 
and create specific Action Plans.  

 
Mobile Working / Home 
Working 
 

o Working 
o Provide an increased number of staff with 

facilities for home working and/or mobile 
working. 

o  
 
Joint Town Centre 
Customer Service 
Centres 
 

o Maximise opportunities of sharing resources 
with organisations within Breckland, offering 
ease of access to a cross section of public 
sector and voluntary services. 

58



Breckland Council Customer Access Strategy 

Monica R Coffey Customer Programme Manager final version  19 

 
Migration Impact Fund 
Project 
 

o To strengthen the integration of new and migrant 
communities and improve the ability of such groups 
to access to services from public, private and 
voluntary sector bodies 

o Provide integrated solutions to the problems faced 
by both migrant citizens and all other communities, 
by providing all the services required to meet their 
needs, at a single point of contact.  

o Training of specialised staff to sort the various 
migrant and community requirements in order to 
better route users (by evaluating their queries and 
issues and verifying their documentation), thus 
contributing to speeding up the required procedures 
and access to services. 

o A holistic, comprehensive model - Citizen’s Shop 
and Bus contributes to improving efficiency in 
coordinating different actions and services and 
simplifies both access and resolution. 

o Contributes to minimising the distrust from 
communities accessing the services. 

o Serve to enhance a climate of cooperation and 
consultation between all of the stakeholders: Local 
Government, partner agencies, migrants, migrant-
led community groups, employers, trade unions and 
the public.  

o Ensuring that integration is a two-way process, 
where the receiving society actively engages in 
adaptation. 

o A Citizen’s Shop and Bus will ease pressure on 
mainstream services and provide for better pooling 
of resources and information between organisations 
with relevant expertise in the area and to make 
efficiency cost-savings. 

o Engaging companies in debates on integration and 
linking governmental programmes with companies’ 
corporate social responsibility programmes 

E – Enabled Service 

. 
 
Strategy 2007 - Customer Segmentation Mobile Working / Home 

59



è

èèèèwww.steria.co.uk

© Steria

Business Improvement Sub-committee

Darren Kampta

Joanne Linton

22nd December 2009

A
g
e
n
d

a
 Ite

m
 1

3

6
0



èèèèwww.steria.co.uk

è Steria KPI overview – October 2009

 

KPI Overview - November

 2009

40.0% 50.0% 60.0% 70.0% 80.0% 90.0% 100.0% 110.0%

1, Satisfaction

2, Availability

3, Impact A

3, Impact B

3, Impact C

4, Response

5, WOR

Nov-09 Target Low Mean High

6
1



èèèèwww.steria.co.uk

è

Commercial in Confidence

Work completed or currently in progress

è Refresh programme is underway – working with ICT to 

prioritise those PC’s with most business need for 

replacement.

èWorking with ICT to agree the support agreement 

required for the new Capita Environment to ensure 

business continuity. 

è The implementation of changes for CoCo compliance.

è Steria in partnership with VMware have presented the 

results of the survey, highlighting the benefits that 

could be achieved if this solution is approved.

6
2



èèèèwww.steria.co.uk

è

Commercial in Confidence

Continuous Service Improvement

è Steria to provide a costed proposal for the extension of the 

virtualised infrastructure.

è Steria will be evaluating a Mitel voice over IP product to establish 

what benefits would be gained if investment is made in this area.

è Steria are also testing a password reset product that will enable 

staff to reset their own passwords as required.

è Trial is underway to evaluate the benefits of using Blackberry 

technology.

6
3


	Agenda
	1 Minutes
	6 ICT Strategy 2009
	7 Print Strategy
	8 Customer Access Strategy
	13 Operational Performance/Steria Service Review

